ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 27, 2002
1: 00 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Drew Scal zi, Co-Chair
Representative Hugh Fate, Vice Chair
Representative Joe G een
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Lesil MCQuire
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Beth Kerttul a

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Beverly Msek, Co-Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 283
"An Act relating to appointnents to the Board of Fisheries and
to the ex officio secretary of the Board of Fisheries.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 284

"An Act relating to participation in matters before the Board of
Fisheries by nenbers of the board; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 208(L&C) am
"An Act relating to the labeling of, the advertising of, and the
di scl osure of certain information about halibut, salnon, halibut
products, and sal non products.”

- MOVED HCS CSSB 208(RES) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 421
"An Act relating to water use and appropriation.”

- MOVED CSHB 421(RES) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2002



HOUSE Bl LL NO. 392
"An Act relating to the use and appropriation of water."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 283

SHORT TI TLE: APPO NTMENTS TO BOARD OF FI SHERI ES
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) SCALZI

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 14/ 02 1949 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 02

01/ 14/ 02 1949 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1949 (H FSH, RES

01/ 16/ 02 1991 (H COSPONSOR('S): STEVENS

01/ 30/ 02 2100 (H COSPONSOR('S) : FATE

02/ 08/ 02 2191 (H COSPONSOR('S): W LSON

02/ 11/ 02 (H FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 11/ 02 (H Heard & Held

02/ 11/ 02 (H M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 11/ 02 (H M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 25/ 02 (H FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 25/ 02 (H Moved CSHB 283( FSH) Qut of
Comm ttee
M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 27/ 02 (H FSH RPT CS(FSH) 3DP 1DNP 2AM

02/ 27/ 02 (H DP: SCALZI, WLSON, STEVENS;

02/ 27/ 02 (H NP: COGHI LL; AM DYSON,
KERTTULA

02/ 27/ 02 (H FN1: ZERQ( GOV)

02/ 27/ 02 (H REFERRED TO RESOURCES

02/ 27/ 02 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 284

SHORT TI TLE: BOARD OF FI SHERI ES CONFLI CTS OF | NTEREST
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) SCALZI

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 14/ 02 1949 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 4/ 02

01/ 14/ 02 1949 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 14/ 02 1949 (H FSH, RES

01/ 16/ 02 1991 (H COSPONSOR( S) : STEVENS

01/ 18/ 02 2014 (H COSPONSOR('S) :  HUDSON

01/ 30/ 02 2100 (H COSPONSOR( S): FATE

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2002



02/ 01/ 02
02/ 08/ 02
02/ 11/ 02
02/ 11/ 02
02/ 11/ 02
02/ 25/ 02
02/ 25/ 02
02/ 27/ 02
02/ 27/ 02
02/ 27/ 02

2127
2191

IITTITII3Z

COSPONSOR(S): LANCASTER
COSPONSOR( S) : W LSON

FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FSH)

FSH AT 3: 30 PM CAPI TOL 124
Schedul ed But Not Heard
FSH REFERRAL WAl VED
REFERRED TO RESOURCES

RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: SB 208
SHORT TI TLE: DI SCLOSURES: SALMON, HALI BUT, SABLEFI SH
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) WARD

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 27/ 01 1303 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 27/ 01 1304 (S) L&C

05/ 02/ 01 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

05/ 02/ 01 (S L&C AT 3:45 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

05/ 02/ 01 (S) Moved CS(L&C) Qut of
Commttee -- Time and
Locati on Change --

05/ 03/ 01 1459 (S) L&C RPT CS 4DP 1NR SAME TI TLE

05/ 03/ 01 1459 (9 DP: PHI LLIPS, DAVIS,
AUSTERMAN, LENAN;

05/ 03/ 01 1459 (S) NR  TORGERSON

05/ 03/ 01 1459 (S) FN1: ZERQ( DEC)

05/ 04/ 01 (S) RLS AT 1: 00 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

05/ 04/ 01 (S -- Tinme Change --

05/ 04/ 01 (S) M NUTE( RLS)

05/ 04/ 01 1497 (S) READ THE THI RD TI ME CSSB
208(L&C) AM

05/ 04/ 01 1496 (S) READ THE SECOND TI ME

05/ 04/ 01 1497 (S) L&C CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT

05/ 04/ 01 1497 (S) AM NO 1 ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT

05/ 04/ 01 1497 (S) ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT

05/ 04/ 01 1497 (S) PASSED Y19 N- Al

05/ 04/ 01 1492 (S) RULES TO CALENDAR 5/4/01

05/ 04/ 01 1514 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

05/ 04/ 01 1514 (S) VERSI ON: CSSB 208(L&C) AM

05/ 05/ 01 1552 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

05/ 05/ 01 1552 (H) FSH, RES

05/ 06/ 01 1615 (H FSH REFERRAL WAl VED

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

February 27, 2002



05/ 07/ 01 1654 (H) RES REFERRAL WAl VED
02/ 04/ 02 2151 (H) RETURNED TO RES COWM TTEE
02/ 27/ 02 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 421
SHORT TI TLE: WATER USE AND APPROPRI ATI ON
SPONSOR(S):  RESOURCES

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 13/ 02 2243 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 13/ 02 2243 (H) RES, FIN

02/ 20/ 02 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 20/ 02 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 22/ 02 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 22/ 02 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 27/ 02 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

CARL ROSI ER, President

Al aska CQut door Counci |

8298 Garnet Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 283.

KEVI N HOGAN

P. 0. Box 2228

Homer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 283.

PAUL SEATON

58395 Bruce Street

Honmer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 283 and in opposition to HB
284.

W LLI AM SULLI VAN

P. 0. Box 943

Kenai, Alaska 99611

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 283 and HB 284.

BOB MERCHANT, President

United Cook Inlet Drift Association

36260 Wen Drive

Kenai, Alaska 99611

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 283 and HB 284.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2002



JEFF KI NG

P. 0. Box 2711

Sol dot na, Al aska 99669

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 283.

LANCE NELSON, Assistant Attorney General

Nat ural Resources Section

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

1031 West 4t h Avenue, Suite 200

Anchor age, Al aska  99501-1994

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the admnistration is
opposed to HB 283 and HB 284.

PAUL SHADURA, Vi ce President

Kenai Peninsul a Fisherman's Associ ation

903 Cook Avenue

Kenai, Al aska 99615

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 283 and in
support of HB 284.

ROBI N SAMUELSEN

P. 0. Box 412

Dillingham Al aska 99576

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 283 and in
support of HB 284 and SB 208.

SUE ASPELUND

Executive D rector

Cordova District Fishermen United

P. O Box 939

Cordova, Al aska 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 284.

SENATOR JERRY WARD

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 423

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 208.

JANI CE ADAIR, Director

D vision of Environnmental Health

Depart ment of Environnental Conservation
555 Cordova Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 208.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2002



JENNI FER YUHAS, St aff

to Representative Beverly Msek

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 128

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 421 on behalf of the House
Resources Standing Committee, sponsor.

Bl LL TEGOSEAK, Executive Director

| nupi at Community of the Arctic Slope (ICAS)
P.O. Box 934

Barrow, Al aska 99723

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 421.

TAD OVNENS, Executive Director

Resour ce Devel opnment Counci

(No address provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of CSHB 421, Version
L, but nentioned concerns with the possible fiscal inpact.

JAN KONI GSBERG

Al aska Public Waters Coalition

1399 West 34t h, Number 505

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Announced the coalition's support of the
provi sions of Section 1 of [CSHB 421].

PAM M LLER

Arctic Connection

(No address provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of public access to
DNR s water records and a standardi zed procedure as described in
Section 1 of [CSHB 421].

ART GRI SWOLD, Far ner

HC 60 Box 4493

Delta Junction, Al aska 99737

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 421.

SUE SCHRADER

Al aska Conservation Voters (ACVY)

PO Box 22151

Juneau, Al aska 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that ACV supports the provisions
in Section 1 of HB 421.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2002



BOB LCEFFLER, Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water

Depart ment of Natural Resources

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1070

Anchor age, Al aska 99501- 3579

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 421.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-10, SIDE A
Number 0001

COCHAIR DREW SCALZI called the House Resources Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:00 p.m Representatives Scal zi,
Fate, Geen, MQire, Stevens, Kapsner, and Kerttula were
present at the call to order. Representative Chenault arrived
as the meeting was in progress.

HB 283- APPO NTMENTS TO BOARD OF FI SHERI ES

CO- CHAIR SCALZI announced that the first order of Dbusiness
before the commttee would be HOUSE BILL NO 283, "An Act
relating to appointnents to the Board of Fisheries and to the ex
officio secretary of the Board of Fisheries.™

Nunber 0204

[ Although there was a notion to adopt CSHB 283(FSH), it was
al ready before the conmttee.]

CO CHAI R SCALZI, sponsor of HB 283, briefly discussed changes in
the bill regarding the nunber of seats for each particular
i nterest group: previously the seats were three sport, three
commercial, and one subsistence, whereas now they are two sport,
two comercial, two subsistence, and one at-|arge. He said he
didn't know whether there had been nuch dialog; his office
hadn't heard many comments fromcommttee nenbers.

Nunmber 0318

CARL ROSIER, President, Al aska Qutdoor Council (AOCC), offered
AOC's view that the Board of Fisheries had been functioning

extrenely well in recent years, that there has been a good
bal ance in terns of conposition of the board, and that the board
has been very open-m nded. He said the board had nade sone
maj or decisions that will long affect the salnobn resources in

Al aska positively.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2002



MR. ROSIER said representation on the Board of Fisheries has
been an issue since statehood, with assertions that the board
was too slanted toward commercial or sport [fishing] interests,
for exanple; also, there have been sone individuals who were
there to represent subsistence. He said HB 283 woul d create one
addi tional board position, although he wasn't sure what problem
HB 283 was addressing. He said the board seenmed to be
acconplishing good things for the resources and the state. He
noted that HB 283 cones at a tine when the state is trying to
save noney.

Number 0509

MR. RCSIER said sone of the problenms that AOCC had experienced
were regarding criteria for selection of people. He expl ai ned
that this had gone through the advisory-committee system
consequently, people who held commercial licenses were
considered to be sport fishernmen because they held a sport fish
| i cense. He suggested that sport-fish [representatives] are
sonetines felt to be slanted in their views as far as commerci al
interests are concerned. He said he thought the designation of
seats went further than just designating a seat; it depends on
the individuals involved and the people appointed and sel ected
by the governor. However, it is necessary to ensure that the
board continues to function in a fair and equitable manner that
is good for all of the users and the resources of the state. He
reiterated that ACC felt the board had been functioning very
well and would like it to stay that way.

Number 0620

CO- CHAIR SCALZI said the United Fishernmen of Alaska (UFA) had
been concerned about representation on the board. He suggested
their intent could be reflected in a recent action the board
took up regarding the so-called Chignik proposal. He nenti oned
| ack of forethought that went into trying to appease one gear
group in one particular area, saying it had some downstream
effect. There was concern that if there was nore representation
on the board, [nenbers] would have responded differently.

MR. RCSI ER suggested an appointnment to the Board of Fisheries is
one of the toughest jobs in the state. He indicated it is
i npossi ble to satisfy everybody. He remarked that a nice aspect
of the board systemis the opportunity to be heard by the board
and receive a decision; however, the decision mght not be
favor abl e. He said the board does not delay decisions or drag

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2002



issues on for a lengthy period of time, which sonme other
regulatory entities tend to do. He remarked that the system has
been working very well. He concluded, "You nmight not always get
your way before the board, but on the other hand, you certainly
get your day in court.”

Number 0799

KEVIN HOGAN testified via teleconference, offering his belief
that the Board of Fisheries process at the present tine is
al nost irreparably broken. He disagreed with M. Rosier's
testinony that the process has been working well. He suggested
HB 283 isn't the right answer. He explained that at the present
time the board conposition is virtually all sport fishernen,
W t hout commercial representation. He nentioned the possibility
of a provision in HB 283 to change the allocation to an eight-
year period to undo the danage done in the |ast eight years.

MR. HOGAN suggested there are other options including a
pr of essi onal board. He said the nethod that staff has used to
determ ne whether proposals are allowed to go before the board

has some real problens with it. He remarked that he feels that
as a menber of the public, his access had been severely
hanper ed. He reiterated that there are presently sonme nmajor
problens with the Board of Fisheries. He said HB 283

illustrates the problem that the commercial [fishing] industry
has, which is that it has been too conciliatory for too |ong.

Number 1000

PAUL SEATON testified via teleconference. He told the commttee
that he had several concerns. He said it sounded as if there
woul d be a nmaxi mum of two nenbers who would be eligible to have
commercial fishing experience. He suggested that presently the
Board of Fisheries and the nenbership are totally oriented

towards and focused on the salnon issue - predomnantly, the
sal mon issue in Cook Inlet. He noted that several different
fisheries exist around the state, however, including troll,
| ongl i ne, di ve, net, pot, shel I [fish], and ground[fish]

fisheries. The level of expertise to cover all those fisheries
that can be obtained from only two nenbers comrercially is

pretty small, he suggest ed. Wth 100 days of neetings a year,
alnmost no truly active comercial fishernen [can attend] and
still be active in many fisheries.

MR. SEATON proposed changing to a split board: one segnent to
deal with salnon, which is where the bal anced board m ght need

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 27, 2002



to be; and another to deal with all the other fisheries. He
suggested it would [resolve] a |lot of contention. In addition

he indicated the conmercial-fishernen board positions should be
changed to allow a recently retired person from the industry to
serve. He nentioned that retired people have the tine and
availability to serve, and could add nore to the board.
Furthernore, he indicated that although there are solutions to
t he board' s pr obl em assi gni ng [ addi ti onal ] seat s and
specifically limting the position to a maxi num of two people
with commercial experience would not solve the problem He
menti oned another point he'd made in a facsimle submitted to
the commttee.

Number 1192

WLLIAM SULLIVAN testified via teleconference in favor of HB
283. He indicated he disagreed with the comment about the board
functioning well in the past. He said he would like to see a
bal anced board. Al though that may not prove to be the end-all
solution, it could be effective for the next six years and could
be assessed during that tine. If the current board has worked,
then it could be nodified.

MR. SULLI VAN said he has sone concerns about HB 283, such as the

five-years-of-active-service requirenent, whi ch m ght be
somewhat excl usive. In addition, he voiced concern about the
wording "actively engaged in the profession of conmercia
fishing". Furthernore, he suggested the commttee should

include the legislative intent there. He said it seened to him
it could be construed that there is currently active commerci al
fishery representation. He nentioned that the testinony about
retired comrercial fishermen was a good point. He specified
that he supports HB 283 as it stands.

Nunber 1375

BOB MERCHANT, President, United Cook Inlet Drift Association
(UCIDA), testified via teleconference in support of the goal of
HB 283, to guarantee a balanced board. He said comerci al
fishing and sport fishing are the two biggest user groups of
fisheries in the state; [the addition of] tw comrercial
positions and two sport positions to the board addresses both,
and adds that experience and expertise to the board. He said
UCIDA would be satisfied with two positions, although three
positions could be at-large, giving the |egislature and the
governor the opportunity to appoi nt other people.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2002



MR. MERCHANT advised the commttee that UCI DA al so supports term
limts. He said the Board of Fisheries is supposed to be a |ay
board of concerned citizens who are experienced in the areas
that the boards are addressing; consequently, UCI DA feels that

term limts wll serve to prevent people from becomng too
professional on the board and to keep nore of a l|ay board. I n
addition, he pointed out the section of the bill that allows a

board nmenber to skip a term and then serve on the board again
for two nore terns. He said if an individual cones along that
is especially good at what he or she does, this provision
woul dn't prevent that person from serving on the board for a
very long tine.

Number 1501

JEFF KING testified via tel econference. He told the committee
he thought the nobst inportant point is that creative, thinking
individuals are appointed to the Board of Fisheries. He said,
"W bid the designated seats here on our local fish and gane
advisory board, and | think it had just [the] reverse effect:

it seened |like we ended up with people that were nore ingrained
than they had before.”

MR. KING referred to a bill sponsored by [then] Representative
Austerman froma prior legislature. He said that bill created a
fourth user group, which was "guided sportsman.” Up to that

time, the user groups in the state were subsistence, commerci al,
and sport; consequently, now there is a fourth user group in
state code, he explained. He said he doesn't think HB 283 goes
far enough to give a fair perspective on the board to that;
furthernore, if there are going to be tw sport seats, then
there should be another two seats for the fourth user group,
which is guide-chartered users. He suggested that because of
previous | egislation, the Board of Fisheries does have authority
to mcromanage and to allocate within sport users differently
than charter fishermen and noncharter fishernen. He brought
attention to page 2, sub-subparagraph (ii), "conbined experience
as sport fisherman, personal use fisherman, or comrercial sport
operator in the state". He suggested that all four user
[ groups] need to be incorporated in order to create fairness.

Nunber 1637
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked what the fourth user group is.

CO CHAIR SCALZI said the fourth group is conmercial guide.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 27, 2002



Nunber 1652

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked M. Hogan why he felt that the board
was "broken" and what was causing it.

MR. HOGAN replied that one reason the board is broken is because
it is packed with sport-fishing interests; consequently, the
comercial -fishing incone of the entire board probably doesn't
exceed $10, 000. In addition, he voiced concern with some
internal [issues] such as the commttee structure and limting
access to the public. He remarked that he appreciated that the
commttee was addressing the problem He suggested that recent
board decisions had put the commercial salnon industry in Cook
Inlet "on its knees."

CO CHAIR SCALZI called upon Lance Nelson, indicating that M.
Nel son is counsel for the Board of Fisheries.

Nunber 1777

LANCE NELSON, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Natural Resources
Secti on, G vil Division (Anchorage), Depart ment of Law,
testified via teleconference. He told the conmttee his

coorments would relate to policy concerns rather than |ega
issues. He said the administration is opposed to HB 283 because
it is viewed as unnecessary. He nentioned the current standard
set by the legislature, including interest in public affairs,
good judgnent, know edge, ability in the field of action of the
Board of Fisheries, and diversity of interest in points of view

Those standards - especially conbined with the confirmation
process itself, whereby the legislature has a chance to review
these standards - should be sufficient to guarantee a capable

Board of Fisheries, he expl ai ned.

MR. NELSON said further limtations mght prevent building the
best possible board by placing sonme very capabl e people outside
of the pool of candidates. In addition, there is concern
because definitions are always under dispute. Furt her nore,
there is nmore than one kind of comercial fishing, sport
fishing, subsistence fishing, and so forth. For exanple, there
have been disputes over whether someone is deened a real
comerci al fisherman, he said.

MR. NELSON offered that the current |anguage of HB 283 m ght
prevent retired fishermen from serving on the board, and yet
they m ght have the nost experience and tine available. He said
there is concern that the person appointed should be nore

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2002



interested in the general public interest rather than just
representing a particular constituency; furthernore, if the goal
is representation of a particular user group or constituency,
then there aren't enough seats anobng a seven-nenber board to try
to do that. He pointed out that the board, of necessity, has to
be nore broadm nded than just focusing on a particular interest.
He said there are concerns that termlimts wll, in sone cases,
prevent the nost qualified and capable people, perhaps at
critical times, fromcontinuing to serve in the board process.

CO-CHAIR SCALZI indicated the intent is to do what is in the
best interest of the State of Al aska.

Number 1929

REPRESENTATI VE Mc GUI RE referred to t he definition of
qualifications for Board of Fisheries nenbers. Dr awi ng
attention to page 2, line 7, she asked M. Nelson if he had any
consternati on about determ ning experience as a sport fisherman,
which she said seened vague. In addition, she asked if

[ determ ni ng experience] is the sane for subsistence users. She
remarked that the commercial fishing category seens the npst
concrete of the three categories.

MR. NELSON replied that statutory interpretation generally
creates legal issues; therefore, the reason he hadn't addressed

the legal issues is because this is a unique situation. He
expl ained that the position taken before the courts in the past
has been that these standards will have to be interpreted and

applied by the legislature itself; consequently, they won't be
subject to court challenge because it is not felt to be a
justifiable question, and the courts don't have the right to
second- guess what t he | egi sl ature deci des during t he
confirmation process. He said the governor would appoint
candidates to the board; the legislature would then |ook at
t hese standards and decide whether they were nmet in confirmng

the candi dates or not. He remarked that if it were subject to
court challenge, then he would have nore concerns; however, it
is nore of a policy choice, and the legislature itself decides
whet her these are standards that it will be able to apply, as

opposed to whet her they'd be challenged in court later.
Nunmber 2066

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Nel son what the conposition of
the current board is.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2002



MR. NELSON said the current board has one nenber [Larry Engel]
who is a retired biologist from the Al aska Departnent of Fish
and Gane (ADF&G and who worked during his career primarily in
the sport-fishery nanagenent area. Anot her nenber, Virgi
Unphenour, is from Fairbanks, owns a "fish processing industry,"”
and has fished commercially in the past; furthernore, his son
holds a comercial fishing permt on the Yukon River. M .
Nel son said with the way the comercial fishery has gone in
Fai r banks, opportunity has been [limted] for wuse of [the
permt] in the recent past. He reiterated that M. Unphenour
does buy and process conmercially caught fish.

MR. NELSON continued with board nenbers. He said John Wite is
a dentist in the Bethel area who holds several comerci al

fishing permts for salnmon and other species. Those fisheries
have also been severely I|limted 1in the recent past ;
consequently, M. Wite's involvenent is limted right now
because of that. Also, Gant MIller is a comrercial fisherman

from the Sitka area who currently operates a "herring bait
pound” on a regular basis; in addition, he does sone tendering;
in the past he was a seiner and |ongliner in Southeast Al aska.

MR. NELSON conti nued. He said Russell Nelson from Dillingham
isn't currently involved in comercial fishing but was in the
past, in the Bristol Bay area. Ed Dersham is a retired drug
enforcenent agent and is primarily a sport-charter operator out
of the Anchor River - Deep Creek area. In addition, Dan Coffey
is an attorney who has been involved in ownership of commerci al
fishing boats in the past; he has sone comercial fishing
experience but has primarily been practicing law in Anchorage
for quite a few years.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA suggested the board should designate a
spot for wonen.

MR. NELSON remarked that there have been wonmen representatives
in the past.

Number 2223

PAUL SHADURA, Vice President, Kenai Peni nsula Fi sherman's
Associ ation (KPFA), testified via tel econference. He i ndi cated
he tells people that there are no active comrercial fishernmen on
the Board of Fisheries. He said the board controls sal non,
herring, and other state-water fisheries; however, there is no
mul ti-experienced, active, comercial fisherman on the Board of
Fi sheri es. There are board nenbers who have been on the Board

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 27, 2002



of Fisheries for nine years without a break, he pointed out.
Wth the majority of state fisheries managed for conmmercial
fisheries and a substantial "intermanagenent” of the sport
fisheries, he suggested it would seem practical and reasonable
that there should be a direct relationship between the users and
the regul at ors.

MR. SHADURA presented the question of how anyone could
understand the intricate know edge and years of experience
required to become a commercial fisherman if that person isn't
in fact a commercial fisherman; furthernore, he said it is not
expertise derived fromonly witten material, but is from years
of being on the sea trying to adjust to all of the chall enges.
He said, "No less inportant is the charter operator or guide or
the recreationalist who has limted tine to get his or her share
of Al aska's bounty."

MR. SHADURA renmarked that all [users] deserve representati on and
should be able to present their needs to soneone who under st ands
and debates the issues when regulations and changes are brought
forth. He suggested that the board rarely debates any decisions
in the open; furthernore, 7-0 is the usual vote. He i ndi cated
there had never been a comercial setnet fisherman on the Board
of Fisheries; however, there are nore setnet permt holders in
Al aska than gillnetters, seiners, trollers, or |ongliners. He
said the setnet fishery [participants] haven' t had the
opportunity to have their say or remedy regulatory inequities,
and are excluded fromthe process.

Nunber 2340

MR. SHADURA said many prom nent sport fishing |eaders advocated
designated seats in the 1994 transitional papers and
recommendations provided to Governor Know es; in addition, sone
t hought four commercial seats would be right. In Petersburg in

October, 27 fishing organizations representing approximately
10, 000 fishernen approved designated seats as the top priority,
including three commercial seats, three sport seats, and one
subsi stence seat; furthernore, the KPFA supports this action
He stated that KPFA doesn't support the conmmttee substitute
(CS), although they appreciate the efforts of I|egislators who
have tried to offer sonme understanding and solutions to these
maj or inequities.

Nunber 2407

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 27, 2002



ROBIN SAMJELSEN testified via teleconference. He told the
commttee he is a former Board of Fisheries nenber who served a
one-year term He indicated he would not be willing to serve
agai n. He said if it isn't broken, then why fix it.
Furthernore, he said he thought nechanisns were in place to
ensure that quality people get appointed to the Board of
Fi sheries. The governor nmekes the nom nation and then, in joint
session, the House and the Senate confirm the nom nees; in the
past, however, [sone] people haven't been confirnmed to the Board
of Fisheries.

MR. SAMUELSEN said in regard to term limts, he wanted to
appl aud those people who are taking tine from thensel ves and
their famlies to volunteer to sit on the board. He renmarked
that he had been voted down on issues with the present Board of
Fi sheri es. He offered his view that the Board of Fisheries had
fl eshed things out very well. The committee process is working,
and there is a chance for people to be heard, he renarked. He
referred to a situation involving the state and crab managenent.
He indicated there were bigger issues than how nany various

fisheries were represented on the Board of Fisheries. He
suggested there were bigger resource issues with the coll apse of
the salnon [fisheries] throughout the state. He indicated he

felt the status quo should be left intact. He stated that he
opposed HB 283.

Number 2515

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked M. Sanuelsen if he thought the North
Pacific [Fishery] Managenent Council (NPFMC) would bode well
under the sanme type of lay-board process wthout designated
seat s.

MR. SAMJELSEN said Alaska's winning track record at the NPFMC
reflects that Alaska is doing pretty well. He said they do have
a termlimt; in addition, a nenber can serve nore than three
ternms on the NPFMC.

Number 2540

CO- CHAIR SCALZI nentioned seat proportions, including managers
from ADF&G processors, commercial fishing interests, a sports
advocate, and representatives from different states. He asked
M. Samuelsen if he felt that was an advantage or a
di sadvantage. Also, he said he would like to see a |lay board on
[ NPEMC] .

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2002



MR. SAMUELSEN said he is commercial fisherman who holds a sport-
fish license, has a history of subsistence, is a fornmer nenber
on the Board of Fisheries, and has represented Al aska on the
NPFMC. Regardl ess of affiliation, it's the dedication that the
i ndi vidual needs to put forth, to represent the resource first,
and all other resource users. He indicated that when he was a
menber on the Board of Fisheries, he never considered not
talking to fishermen from other fisheries because of public
perception. He remarked that he represented the resource and
represented all of the user groups.

Nunber 2610

CO-CHAIR SCALZI indicated HB 283 would be held for further
consi derati on.

HB 284- BOARD OF FI SHERI ES CONFLI CTS OF | NTEREST

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 283]
Nunmber 2631

CO CHAI R SCALZI announced that the next order of business before
the conmttee would be HOUSE BILL NO 284, "An Act relating to
participation in matters before the Board of Fisheries by
menbers of the board; and providing for an effective date.” [HB
284 was sponsored by Representative Scal zi.]

Nunmber 2681

SUE ASPELUND, Executive Director, Cordova D strict Fishernen
United (CDFU), testified via teleconference. She said CDFU
thinks that HB 284 is very inportant; furthernore, CDFU believes
it is wunfair to wthhold full participation in this very
inportant process to an entity that is there because of its
expertise and knowl edge in the fisheries arena. She said she

had personally sat through a nunber of Board of Fisheries
neetings where nmnenbers were conflicted out; those nenbers

i nval uabl e know edge woul d have been hel pful to the proceedi ngs,
but they were precluded from providing that input because of the
conflict-of-interest statute. Enphasi zi ng the inportance of HB
284, she urged that it be noved fromcomittee.

Number 2739

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if those nenbers were precluded
from giving the information because they weren't allowed to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 27, 2002



deliberate or if it was because there was a short anmount of time
for testinony.

M5. ASPELUND said nenbers with a conflict of interest are able
to participate as a nenber of the public. During public
testinmony, they may sit at the public testifiers' table and
provide their five mnutes of testinony. However, a nenber who
has a conflict of interest isn't allowed to participate in the
commttee neetings, deliberations, or voting, she said. | f
particul ar know edge on an issue cones up during a conmttee
[meeting] or during deliberations that nay not have conme up
during public testinony, nenbers with a conflict of interest
aren't allowed to provide input; consequently, at a very key
part of the process they are precluded because of their conflict
of interest.

Number 2795

ROBIN SAMJELSEN testified via teleconference. He told the
committee he fully supported Ms. Aspelund' s testinony. He said
the conflict-of-interest rules are really restrictive. There
are seven [Board of Fisheries] nenbers; there are checks and
bal ances in the board system Consequently, it's a thorough
public process. Under the present conflict-of-interest rules,

however, he said he doesn't think the decisions being rendered
are the best decisions; a [board nenber] who has a conflict
isn't allowed to participate in the discussion. He said the
[conflict-of-interest rules] have hindered the process when he
was on the board; it has becone nore conplicated since that
time. He referred to the disclosure statenent, which he said he
felt was very cunbersone and unw el dy.

Nunmber 2846

BOB MERCHANT, President, United Cook Inlet Drift Association
(UCIDA), testified via tel econference. He told the committee
UCI DA supports the passage of HB 284; furthernore, he concurred
with M. Aspelund' s testinmony and said that was also UCH DA s
position on HB 284.

Nunber 2858
WLLIAM SULLIVAN testified via teleconference. He told the
commttee he supported HB 284. He asked the conmittee to

consider the effects on the board with the passage of HB 284
w thout the passage of HB 283. He remarked that if one accepts
the idea that the board is presently weighted in one direction,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2002



it may go even nore in that direction by freeing up sonme of the
conflict |anguage.

Nunmber 2885
PAUL SEATON testified via tel econference. He referred to a
facsimle he'd submtted to the conmmttee. He told the

commttee he was in opposition to HB 284. Commerci al fishernen
on the Board of Fisheries can fully participate in any
di scussion of comercial fisheries other than the specific
species and area that person has a financial interest in, he
expl ai ned. Every state in the Union has conflict-of-interest
| aws; furthernore, the laws had to be passed because conflict of
interest results in bad regulations and lots of problens; he
poi nted out that judges or jurors don't make decisions on things
in which they have a financial participation.

MR. SEATON said this bill would essentially convert the Board of
Fisheries into the same structure as the [North Pacific] Fishery
Managenent Council (NPFMC) on the federal level; in addition,
[ NPEFMC] is exenpt from conflict-of-interest |aws, and can accept
noney from anybody or be hired as a |obbyist by anybody, in
spite of a financial interest. Furthernore, [NPFMC nenbers] can
be strong participants in one particular segnent of the industry
and can vote in favor of that segnent of the industry. He noted
the vast difference in |legal and practical aspects between the
Board of Fisheries and the [NPFMC], since the latter is advisory
in nature. He offered that [HB 284] is a terrible idea.

TAPE 02-10, SIDE B
Nunber 2970

MR. SEATON suggested that Al aska and all other states have drawn
up conflict-of-interest |aws because when people are allowed to
create regulations despite having a financial conflict of
interest, it causes problens. This is not a problem that "we
need to inject on top the current problens with the Board of
Fisheries, he said. He urged the commttee to reject HB 284.

Nunber 2921

LANCE NELSQON, Assistant Attorney General, Natural Resources
Secti on, G vil D vision (Anchorage), Depart ment of Law,
testified via tel econference. He informed the conmittee that
the admnistration is opposed to HB 284. He said the current
et hi cal st andar ds give the Board of Fi sheries hi gher
credibility. In addition, people are usually or alnpbst always

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 27, 2002



present at the board neetings who can work on committees and
give the same information and viewpoint as conflicted board

menbers, he suggest ed. He said conflicted board nenbers can
give public testinony and talk to other Board of Fisheries
menber s; however, they can't participate in the actual

del i berati ons and voti ng.
Nunber 2884

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Nelson if he could offer an
exanple of what is concerning people about board nenbers who
have a financial conflict not being allowed to deliberate.

MR. NELSON said a board neeting begins with public testinmony in
whi ch any nmenber of the public can testify for a limted but
equal anount of tine to the board and can answer questions

there. The board will assign proposals to comrittees, in which
there is a panel of public nmenbers appointed to speak for the
varied interests that are following the proposal, either in
support or opposition. Subsequently, the commttee prepares a
report and makes a recommendation to the full board, which then
deli berates on the proposal. The deliberations are on the

record and open to the public. The board takes frequent breaks;
consequently, nothing prevents the conflicted board nenber from
talking to the other nenbers, the public, or representative
interest groups during that time. However, the conflicted board
menber would be prevented from discussing or arguing for or
agai nst the proposal, and from voti ng.

Number 2779

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Nelson to describe the kind of
conflict that would renove a nmenber from deliberating or voting.

MR. NELSON said the major conflict would be if a nmenber has a
significant financial interest at stake in the proposal. For
exanple, if a proposal would increase an allocation to [the
conflicted board nenber's user group] or allow the nenber to
financially benefit, then that nenber is prevented from voting.
Board nenbers often renove thenselves voluntarily if there is
any question of conflict of interest, to avoid the appearance of

unet hi cal conduct. The other interest at stake usually arises
when the board nenber - or an organization in which the board
menber is a policynmaking officeholder - has a proposal before

the board, or when that organization has taken a position on a
proposal before the board, or in sonme cases in which the
conflicted board nenber has "shepherded”" a proposal through an

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 27, 2002



organi zation and that organization has endorsed it. Such
interests are defined as personal interests, and the [conflicted
board nmenber] is prevented from deliberating and voting on those
pr oposal s.

Nunber 2684

PAUL SHADURA, Vice President, Kenai Peni nsula Fi sherman's
Association (KPFA), testified via tel econference. He told the
comm ttee KPFA supports HB 284. He said:

W could give you a good exanple: in Cook Inlet,
where you have three sport representatives and also
M. Umphenour is a registered guide, the situation if
there was an appointnment for a commercial fisherman to
be there, [M. Umphenour] would be opted out by the
current regulations or the policy from discussing any
of his expertise - so making his expertise and his
know edge noot .

MR. SHADURA said he could see the conflict if it were a direct
benefit to an individual. But for general classes of people, he
said he had a hard tine thinking it is a conflict. He remarked
that if that were so, then there would be a lot of conflicts
"crossing each other for many different avenues in the state.”
He said for "us" that's a way to communicate. Referring to M.
Nel son's testinony regarding comrittee process, he reported that
after the public speaks during the commttee process, there are
usually two board nenbers who then debate and discuss the
[issue] with other people and conme out with a report that is not
on the record. After the decision is nade, a conmttee report
is generated, which doesn't necessarily reflect what was said
during the commttee forum M. Shadura remarked that he'd had
a problem with that particular situation; those two nenbers had
then discussed their views with the rest of the board nenbers.
He pointed out that there could be sonme very real discrepancies
and conflicts because of that.

Number 2570

CARL ROSIER, Al aska Qutdoor Council (AOCC), told the conmttee
AOC is opposed to HB 284. This has been one of the nmgjor
factors that's made the board such a trustworthy operation in
the state, he remarked. He said the criticism directed toward
the NPFMC on this issue seenms to be a constant din of people
criticizing that council as a result of [nenbers] with conflicts
of interest. He said, "MIllions of dollars involved in every

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 27, 2002



decision that that council makes - of course, on this, | am not
here to say whether it's right or wong." He added that from
the public's perception of the council sessions on this,
however, conflict of interest is close to the top as a nmjor
probl em

MR. ROSIER suggested the Board of Fisheries doesn't get that
sanme criticism nor does the board overstep its bounds as far as
conflict of interest iIs concerned. He said in 40 years of
participating in or observing board sessions in the state, he
had never seen an issue yet that the board couldn't cone to
resolution on, and individuals who were conflicted out availed
t hensel ves of opportunities to participate on the fringes. He
said in order to nmaintain that credibility on the Board of
Fisheries, it should continue to be subject to the conflict-of-
i nterest provisions.

Nunber 2460

COCHAIR SCALZI indicated HB 284 would be held for further
consi derati on.

Nunber 2455

CO CHAIR SCALZI called an at-ease at 2:10 p.m He called the
meeting back to order at 2:11 p.m

SB 208- DI SCLOSURES: SALMON, HALI BUT, SABLEFI SH

CO CHAI R SCALZI announced that the next order of business before
the commttee would be the CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 208(L&C) am
"An Act relating to the labeling of, the advertising of, and the
di sclosure of certain information about halibut, salnmon, halibut
products, and sal non products.”

Number 2433
REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE noved to adopt HCS CSSB 208 [version 22-

LS0788\J, Bannister, 2/26/02] as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version J was before the commttee.

Number 2423

SENATOR JERRY WARD, Al aska State Legislature, testified as the
sponsor of SB 208. He indicated he wasn't an expert in the
fishing [industry], but had been involved in fish "wars" for a
l ong tine. Al so, he [is active in] comrercial setnetting and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 27, 2002



sport and subsistence [fishing]. He indicated he and his famly
were surprised to learn that farned salnon [contains] red dye
and antibiotics. He explained that he'd approached several
[grocery stores] and asked them to label [the farnmed sal non so
that consuners could identify which products contain dye and

anti biotics]. The people at those stores didn't know or didn't
admt that those [products contain dye and antibiotics], he
sai d. He indicated that to nake the producers of farmed fish

| abel the product is nore involved than he'd had anticipated
which is why SB 208 was created. He referred to a poster he'd
brought for illustrative purposes.

SENATOR WARD recounted that during a trip to California he and
sone friends, wanting a salnon dinner, had [contacted] every
restaurant in Palm Springs to try to find Al askan sal non. The
sal nron advertised on the nenus said, "Alaska sal non" or "natura

salnon" or "pristine salnmon,” for exanple, but there was no
"wld salnmn" to be found in Palm Springs, a five-star
restaurant [location]. He said [the subject] again canme up

while working wth Representative Kerttula on vaccines.
Number 2296

SENATOR WARD said he doesn't believe that people in the genera
public have any concept that [dye and antibiotics] are in
[farmed fish]. He indicated he would |ike Al askans to have an
obligation to | abel products to identify themas free of dye and
anti biotics. Senator Ward said he couldn't even begin to I|ist
the [additives]. He said after talking to the federal
government and M chele Brown, [Commi ssioner] of the Departnent
of Environnmental Conservation (DEC), [he'd discovered] that
nobody really knows all of the things that go into sone of the
farmed products that don't conme from[the United States].

SENATOR WARD said salnon and other fish caught in Al aska don't
contain [dye or antibiotics], and he feels they should be
| abel ed as such. He offered his belief that [farned fish
containing dye or antibiotics] is poisonous, and he wants his
kids and [constituents] to have the knowl edge and ability to

decide for thensel ves. He indicated this legislation is not
banning [farmed fish]. It's a sinple truth in | abeling.
Nunmber 2168

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked Senator Ward if he had eaten any
[farmed fish].

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- February 27, 2002



SENATOR WARD sai d he had, but doesn't anynore.
Number 2099

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE conplinmented Senator Ward on the bill.
She referred to page 3 [Section 2, which adds a new section to
AS 17.20.048]. She asked how this would be enforced and what
the penalty woul d be.

SENATOR WARD said mslabeling laws currently exist; [ AS
17.20.048] would fall under those. He indicated that if a
product were mslabeled, it would be fraud. However, | abeling
cannot be forced for [farnmed fish]; it would take Al aska and
other states to get Congress do that, which he said he thought
woul d eventual |y happen.

REPRESENTATI VE Mc@UJ RE asked, "So, this is nore the carrot as
opposed to the stick?"

SENATOR WARD sai d yes.
Nunber 1993

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA renmarked that [SB 208] is a great bill
She began discussion of what would be adopted Ilater as
Amendnents 2 and 3. Referring to page 4, line 9, subsection
(c), she asked whether Senator Ward would have any concerns
about changing it to say that halibut, salnon, or sablefish
products include halibut, salnon, sablefish or food products
made from [those]. She indicated the need to include the whole
fish as well, since a whole farnmed sal non m ght show up.

SENATOR WARD said he would have no problem and thinks it [would
make the provision] clearer.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noted that a definition in Title 17 that
deals with farnmed-sal non products could be referred to, and in
the definitions section, AS 17.23.070, which defines farned
sal non products, halibut, salnon, and sablefish could be added
and changed accordingly.

Nunber 1782

ROBIN SAMJELSEN testified via teleconference. He told the
commttee he was in support of SB 208 and the anended | anguage.
He said he was glad sablefish was included [in Version J]. He

said the largest fish farmer in the world has projected

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 27, 2002



produci ng 400,000 tons of cod in 2012, so it's going to be
di sruptive to the cod narket. He said there are 32 different
colors [of dye] that whol esal ers can choose from

Number 1734

JANI CE ADAI R Director, Division of Environnental Heal t h,
Department of Environnmental Conservation (DEC), testified via
t el econf erence. She told the commttee there has been sone
concern that prior versions of this bill would apply to sal non
or [other] fish from hatcheries. The amendnent nade on the
Senate floor to page 3, line 28 [of the Senate version, now |ine
30 in Version J] renoved the word "or", which she said DEC
interprets to clarify that this bill doesn't apply to hatchery
fish. [ The rel evant | anguage on page 3, line 28, CSSB 208(L&C)
am read: "(2) has not been raised in captivity under control
for its entire life".]

CO CHAIR SCALZI noted that "or" [page 3, line 30, Version J] is
[again] in the bill: "(2) has not been raised in captivity or
under control for its entire life".

M5. ADAIR recommended del eting "or".
Number 1540

REPRESENTATI VE McGUJI RE noved to adopt Anendnent 1, to renove the
word "or" from page 3, l|ine 30. She explained that it would
clarify that it [is applicable] to farned fish as opposed to
those hatched in captivity.

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked whether there was any objection. There
bei ng no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunber 1449

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noved to adopt Anendnent 2, on page 4,
lines 9-10 [subsection (c)], to amend the |anguage to say,
"includes halibut, salnon, or sablefish or a food product nade
from halibut, salnon, or sablefish.”

CO CHAI R SCALZI restated the new wording:
In this section, "hal i but, sal non, or sabl efi sh

product” includes halibut, salnon, or sablefish or a
food product made from hali but, sal non, or sablefish

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- February 27, 2002



Nunber 1406

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked if there was any objection. There being
no objection, Amendnment 2 was adopt ed.

Number 1400

REPRESENTATI VE  KERTTULA  proposed |anguage for concept ual
Amendnent 3. Reiterating her earlier point that there is a
definition of farnmed salnon product in statute [AS] 17.20.370,
she noted that page 3, line 13 [Version J] says "the food is a
farmed bhalibut, salnon, or sablefish product”. Ther ef or e,
[ Anendment 3] would add halibut and sablefish into the
definition. She recomrended the |anguage, "a farmed hali but
product neans ... or a farnmed salnon, halibut, or sablefish
product neans.” She said this makes it clear that the provision

doesn't include hatchery fish. She noted that the exact wording
can be [determ ned by Legislative Legal and Research Services].

Nunber 1304

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked about the procedure to [anend the
definition], because it is not attached to the bill

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA offered that it is in the ambit of the
title and is clearly referred to in the bill itself.

Number 1272

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noved to adopt the foregoing [as
conceptual Anendnent 3]. There being no objection, Amendnent 3
was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA pointed out an earlier suggestion to
| abel fish that aren't tested for antibiotics as such.

Nunber 1222

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to report HCS CSSB 208 [version 22-
LS0788\J, Bannister, 2/26/02, as anended] out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
note. There being no objection, HCS CSSB 208(RES) was reported
fromthe House Resources Standing Commttee.

CO CHAIR SCALZI called an at ease from2:31 p.m to 2:39 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- February 27, 2002



HB 421- WATER USE AND APPROPRI ATI ON

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 392]

CO- CHAI R SCALZI announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 421, "An Act relating to water wuse and
appropriation.”

Nunber 1162

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to adopt CSHB 421, version 22-
LS1334\L, Luckhaupt, 2/27/02, as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version L was before the commttee.

Nunber 1150

JENNI FER YUHAS, Staff to Representative Beverly Masek, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 421 on behalf of the House
Resources Standi ng Conmittee, sponsor. M. Yuhas explained that
| ast year there was a sunset attached to the tenporary water
permts. The intent was to review the issue over the interim
She infornmed the committee that water is a public-trust resource
for which the constitutional responsibility of the legislature
to [distribute] that resource in the public interest has been
statutorily designated to the Departnent of Natural Resources
(DNR). She noted that she had reviewed the adjudication process
in general for Alaska; during her review of this process, the
department had produced draft regulations to change the process.

M5. YUHAS reported that she'd attended sonme neetings on the
proposed regulations; issues brought up were, first, public
di ssatisfaction because of a seemngly arbitrary [distribution]
of the public-trust resource and, second, inability to get
access to records. Therefore, this bill sinply addresses those
two conplaints, by directing DNR to develop a standardized
procedure so that there is sonmething to check against in regard
to ensuring that [water permts] are being distributed in a fair
manner, as well as addressing the public's need to access their
records.

Number 0928

Bl LL TEGOSEAK, Executive Director, Inupiat Comunity of the
Arctic Slope (ICAS), testified via teleconference, noting that
the ICAS is a federally recognized, regional tribal governnent
enconpassi ng eight sovereign tribal governnents. M. Tegoseak
informed the commttee of the difficulty the North Slope triba

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- February 27, 2002



menbers have experienced in obtaining information from the
Division of Mning and Water in regard to water usage.

MR. TEGOSEAK enphasized, "My comments are not intended to

reflect opposition to onshore oil developnent, because our
tribal nmenbers support responsible oil devel opnent onshore, and
we all benefit from such responsible devel opnent."” However ,
there is the need to ensure sufficient public water supplies

especially in wnter, and sufficient wat er to maintain
subsi stence resources. "These goals are not inconpatible wth

onshore oil devel opnent,"” he suggested.

MR. TEGOSEAK explained that the experience of the regiona
tribal governnent has been that the division hasn't provided
access to information on past wat er usage or current
applications in a reasonable fashion. Therefore, [the regiona
tribal governnent] can't be sure its water sources are well
managed. Furthernore, DNR appears to restrict access to public
files, as noted in HB 392. As an exanple, he offered his belief
that the division recently inplenented a $50-per-hour charge to
obtain agency files, prepare files for inspection, and assist
the requestor with file inspection; this is in addition to a
$22. 50- per - hour copyi ng char ge.

Number 0703

MR. TEGOSEAK said although [the tribal governnents aren't]
opposed to paying reasonable fees for these services, DNR
appears to be using this policy to limt the availability of
records. Moreover, for individuals requesting records in order
to comment on a project on the North Slope, the departnent has
del ayed access on the grounds that it's too busy processing the
tenporary water use permts. He said that is unacceptable. He
pointed out that tenporary water use permts don't require
public notice; he maintained, therefore, that the Ileast DNR
could do is notify [the entity], once a permt is issued, of how
much water the permt is for, howlong it is for, and from which
| ake the water is being taken. However, DNR has established
significant hurdles to this access to public records.

MR. TEGOSEAK recalled DNR s past clains that it needed nore
noney for its water-permtting program However, now the
departnment seens to be placing roadblocks in the public's path.
"We cannot see what the Departnent of Natural Resources has done
with this funding," he charged. He reiterated the need for
access to public docunents in a tinmely fashion. He expressed
the need for DNR to develop a process in which the departnent

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- February 27, 2002



woul d fax docunents in a tinely fashion or make them avail abl e

on the Internet. M. Tegoseak explained that he supports
Section 1 of HB 421 because it nay achieve this vital public
noti ce. He urged the commttee to add a provision to require

that only copyi ng charges be paid.
Nunmber 0456

TAD OVWENS, Executive Director, Resource Developnent Counci
(RDC), testified via teleconference. He explained that RDC is a
private, nonprofit trade association that represents individuals
and conpanies from Alaska's mning, tinber, tourism fisheries,
and oil and gas industries. Its mssion is to grow Alaska's
econony through responsible devel opnent of the state's natural
resour ces.

MR. OWENS announced that RDC supports the changes to HB 421
enconpassed in Version L. He explained, "As a rule, RDC
supports efforts to clearly define and streanline the permtting
procedures that are used by Al aska's resource agencies. And we
feel that HB 421 in its <current form is an inportant,
increnental step towards this standard.” However, M. Owens
noted that RDC has concerns about possible fiscal inpacts of the
bill and therefore encourages the legislature to work closely
with DNR in order to ensure that the departnent is able to neet
the intent of the bill's | anguage w t hout additional funding.

Nunmber 0305

JAN KONl GSBERG, Al aska Public Waters Coalition, testified via
tel econference, bringing attention to the process issues that
Version L addresses. He said the coalition is specifically
concerned with DNR s process that has had the effect of limting
public access to public information on water use and
applications for water use. In the last several nonths, the
coalition has had several neetings that were well attended by
the public and coalition nenbers. During those neetings, there
were reports that DNR has inplenented processes to limt access
by charging fees for "file review' and "file preparation.” He
expressed concern with the nonetary inpact of this policy. Mre
inportant, the question is why public servants are potentially
filtering public information in these records. He said [the
coalition] hopes this isn't an effort by the departnent to
"sanitize" the records. He expl ai ned:

Wat er IS a constitutional -protected resource.
Information in state files on water use should al so be

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- February 27, 2002



freely given and constitutionally protected as well,
O herwise, there can be no public or legislative
oversight of DNR s water permtting program

MVR. KONl GSBERG announced the coalition's support of the

provisions of Section 1. He indicated hope regarding the
standardi zed procedure and access to public docunents, along
Wi th assurances that DNR will observe the current regulations -

five free hours before anyone in the public is charged a fee.
Number 0065

PAM MLLER, Arctic Connection, testified via teleconference.
The owner of a small business for which part of the work
i nvol ves consulting on water-resource issues around Al aska, M.
MIller mentioned that she'd participated in the Anerican Water
Resources Association - Alaska Section neeting last April, at
which time surface waters were discussed. Ms. MIler said she
was testifying in support of public access to DNR s water
records and a standardi zed procedure as described in Section 1
of HB 421. Ms. MIler explained that she is concerned about
water in general, due to what has happened in places such as
California.

TAPE 02-11, SIDE A
Number 0001

M5. MLLER indicated she'd attended a neeting with DNR regarding
its proposed regulations; although she'd requested a sinple

listing of all the permts, she hadn't yet seen that list. She
related other personal experiences regarding the difficulties
with DNR s process involving access to the public record. I n

regard to HB 421, Ms. MIller said she views Section 1 as hel pful
in the research she has done. She pointed out that AS 44.62.312
in part says:

(a) It is the policy of the state that

(1) the governnental units nmentioned in AS
44.62.310(a) exist to aid in the conduct of the
peopl e' s busi ness;

(2) it is the intent of the law that actions of
those units be taken openly and that their
del i berati ons be conducted openly;

(3) the people of this state do not yield their
sovereignty to the agencies that serve them

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- February 27, 2002



M5. M LLER concluded by again expressing concern with public
i nfornmati on on water resources.

Number 0369

ART CGRI SWOLD, Farner, testified via teleconference in support of
HB 421. He noted that he is very interested in HB 392 because
it would provide agriculture with a secondary position to
donestic water. M. Giswld expressed the need to know what
wells are recorded when one purchases property. Furthernore, he
asked how soneone would know where and when one's irrigation
well would be mxed up with one's donestic water. W t hout
access to domestic water usage closest to one's irrigation
wells, there is no know edge of the inpact on [donestic waters].
Having this information on the Internet would provide nuch nore
i nformation.

MR GRISWOLD offered his belief that this legislation would be

benefi ci al . However, he expressed concern with a comrent [in
anot her hearing] that it would take DNR five years to catch up
on the water permtting. Therefore, he questioned how that

backl og could be addressed while providing anything up-to-date
on the Internet.

Number 0524

SUE SCHRADER, Al aska Conservation Voters (ACV), noted that the
commttee packet should include her position paper. She
hi ghlighted the fact that ACV supports the provisions in Section
1 of HB 421. Having this information nore readily available to
the public will be beneficial to nost Al askans, she offered.

Number 0611

BOB LCEFFLER, Director, Dvision of Mning, Land and Wter,
Department of Natural Resources, testified via tel econference.
He said, "Quite frankly, | don't understand where sone of this
is comng from" He related his belief [that the division] is
fully commtted to providing everyone public informtion. M.
Loeffler explained [the division's] policy that its files are
open to the public at all tinmes. He pointed out that if someone
makes an appointment, the file may be ready. However, [wi thout
an appointnment] the file may be [in use by staff] and thus it's
harder [to have the file avail able i medi atel y].

MR. LCEFFLER infornmed the conmittee that people are charged $.25
a page for copies and $50 for research. He said that since he

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- February 27, 2002



has been director, to his know edge, only G eenpeace had been
charged $50; that was because G eenpeace had requested over 100
files, which had to be pulled from archives and a variety of
ot her pl aces. He acknowl edged the possibility that an enpl oyee
had told Ms. MIler she'd be charged $50; however, he said that
isn't the division's policy. "The notion that we hide public
records or, as was inplied, that we were shredding public
records is just not true," he stressed.

Nunmber 0756

MR. LOEFFLER advised the commttee that [division personnel] had
spent over eight hours discussing the regulations wth
representatives, including M. Konigsberg and Ms. MIller, froma
variety of environnmental groups; no one had brought up issues

regardi ng access to public records. Therefore, he noted his
slight shock at these accusations. M. Loeffler reiterated his
belief that the division's files are open to the public. | f

there is informati on ot herw se, he suggested [inform ng] him

MR, LOEFFLER turned to Section 1 and infornmed the commttee that
there are many records available on the Internet, but those are
a bit cunbersone. M. Loeffler said he wasn't sure what
[ Section 1] was requesting. He pointed out that if the desire
is to make all the division's files available on the Internet,
that would amount to 1.4 mllion pieces of paper.

Nunber 0858

CO CHAIR SCALZI related his belief that the intent is to place
as much information as possible on the Internet. He said he
didn't think it would be nmandated to do it now, which he viewed
as a [House Finance Conmittee] decision. The bill urges that

the division nove in the direction [of placing as mnuch
information on the Internet as possible].

MR. LOEFFLER said he was fine with that because he believes [the
di vision] works for the public.

Nunmber 0930

M5. YUHAS turned to M. Loeffler's comment that from the
nmeetings with the environnmental groups, he was unaware of any

concerns regarding public access. However, at those very
nmeetings was where she becane aware that there was a problem
with accessing public records, she said. Therefore, the bill

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -32- February 27, 2002



was i ntroduced. Ms. Yuhas said she feels that this access
probl em was evi dent at those neetings.

M5. YUHAS expressed the need for clarification from the
departnment regarding its definition of "significant use of
water." Last year, the legislature gave the departnment $300, 000
to address the backlog. [That noney was used to] create 5.5 new
positions. Through regulation, it appears that the backlog wll
be elimnated because of the definition of significant use -
50,000 gallons a day - as well as the departnent's application
requirenent [for use] above 50,000 gallons, although the
application won't be processed unless there is a conflict or the
gal | on usage becones 50,000 gallons a day. Therefore, nost of
t he backl og woul d be i ncor por at ed.

Number 1042

M5. YUHAS said the departnment is on record as not being happy
with Representative Harris's bill regarding defining significant
use. Therefore, she requested clarification fromthe departnent
on its definition of significant water wuse, on whether the
departnment feels it should be defined, as well as how the
departnment intends to address the backlog through defining
significant use.

MR. LCOEFFLER answered that significant use is currently defined
in regulation as 500 gallons a day or 5,000 gallons over ten
days. The [division] had proposed regulations changing that,
al t hough analysis of the public comment hasn't been conpleted

He expl ained that those regul ati ons woul d' ve changed significant
use to 5,000 gallons a day from an anadronous fish stream or
50,000 from groundwater or a nonanadronobus fish stream No
deci sion has been nmade on that. He commrented, however, that it
woul d only have limted inpact on the backl og.

Nunmber 1138

M5. YUHAS pointed out that the fiscal note will be attached to
HB 421 in order to create a few nore positions at DNR, which she
feels is a cheaper route than losing nore lawsuits due to not
adhering to the public process. Ms. Yuhas urged the departnent
to better address its responsibility to the public by review ng
its nonetary requirenments to neet what HB 421 is requesting.
She further urged the departnent to be prepared to articulate
those requirenents to the House Finance Commttee. Ms. Yuhas
said, "I believe that the departnent may expect a higher |eve

of scrutiny this year fromthe elected officials who appropriate

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 33- February 27, 2002



these funds in light of last year's award. W still don't know
what exactly is happening with that $300,000." M. Yuhas urged
the conmttee to report the bill fromcomittee.

Number 1220

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to report CSHB 421, version 22-
LS1334\L, Luckhaupt, 2/27/02, out of commttee with individua
recommendations and the forthcomng fiscal note. There being no
obj ection, CSHB 421(RES) was reported from the House Resources
St andi ng Conmittee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 34- February 27, 2002



